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RUSHMORE PARK
Name: RUSHMORE PARK
District: Dorset (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Farnham
District: Dorset (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Sixpenny Handley and Pentridge
District: Wiltshire (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Berwick St. John
District: Wiltshire (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Tollard Royal

label.localisation:  Latitude: 50.951308
Longitude: -2.0643662
National Grid Reference: ST 95575 16877
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.localisation:  [50.969095376427,-2.05738773257613], [50.9690580837948,-2.05735460384331]
[50.9727901964731,-2.04661817042029], [50.9748422881731,-2.04813982968203],
[50.9712057704299,-2.05851682709449], [50.9710842420391,-2.05842280515034] ,
[50.9709870209017,-2.05832639323983], [50.9708958862599,-2.05823241046777],
[50.9708670264961,-2.05820349173833], [50.9707925910071,-2.05812636421435]
[50.9707333457591,-2.05808055943508] , [50.9706588939098,-2.05805399070702],
[50.9705327634517,-2.05802735732267], [50.9703975040085,-2.05802237430113],
[50.9702470308068,-2.05805106806245], [50.9701421634416,-2.05806778463264],
[50.9700083899978,-2.05813020887293], [50.9699065662397,-2.05812043963245] ,
[50.9698640159926,-2.05811797948469], [50.9697910790486,-2.05810104028989] ,
[50.9697303044476,-2.05807448920128], [50.9696816856328,-2.05803351247692],
[50.969637631309,-2.05799976197684], [50.9695738448671,-2.05791785077857],
[50.9695525823418,-2.05789134933951], [50.9694766460511,-2.05777571381908] ,
[50.9693779327434,-2.05764081019242], [50.9693156508197,-2.05757093573955] ,

[50.9691941263914,-2.0574672787811], [50.969095376427,-2.05738773257613]

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: I
List Entry Number: 1000542
Datefirst listed: 01-Jun-1990
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Details

A late C19 park laid out by General Pitt-Riversincorporating a smaller C17 enclosure and parts of amedieval deer park.
HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

In 1616, the rights of the ancient forest of Cranborne Chase were settled on the Earl of Salisbury, who also owned the manor of
Berwick St John. Thisincluded the Rushmore area, and he enclosed land to the east of Rushmore L odge (see Thomas Aldwell's
map of 1618). Rushmore was one of two walks within the Chase which lay in Wiltshire, and ¢ 1650 the Rushmore Walk was
recorded as having ¢ 160 deer (VCH 1987). In 1671 the Chase rights and the manors of Berwick St John and Tollard Royal
were sold to the Earl of Shaftesbury who held them until 1692. The estate then had a series of ownersuntil 1714, when it passed
to George Pitt of Stratfield Saye in Hampshire (qv). The C15 Rushmore Lodge was replaced in the early C17 and was partly
demolished, the remainder becoming offices, in the mid C18 when the nearby Rushmore House was constructed. In 1817, Pitt's
grandson George, Lord Rivers, rebuilt Rushmore House and it became the family's summer residence. An Act of Parliament
which disfranchised the Chase was passed in 1829 so permitting the creation of a park, but plansfor such work were abandoned
and the immediate surrounds of the House remained as open downland, coppice woodland, and wood pasture. New gardens
around the House were planned after 1856, but it is unclear whether they were implemented (ibid).

In 1880, on the death of the sixth Lord Rivers, the property was inherited by Lt-General Augustus Henry Lane-Fox, great
grandson of thefirst Lord Rivers, who added Pitt-Riversto hisname. In 1882 the General becamethefirst government I nspector
of Ancient Monuments, and is generally remembered as the father of modern English archaeology. Between 1880 and 1900 he
transformed the land around Rushmore House into a series of parks and leisure facilities (Plan, 1900). This included extensive
tree-planting schemes, the creation of a deer park and an experimental livestock breeding area, and the creation of the Larmer
Tree Grounds (qv) and adjacent golf course and racecourse. After General Pitt-Rivers death in 1900, the family continued to
live at Rushmore House until 1927.

In 1963 the Rushmore estate was sold. The House is now (2002) used as a school and both it and the estate remain in separate
private ownership.

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Rushmore Park, a site of 535ha, lies on Cranborne Chase,
to the east and south of the village of Tollard Royal, just north of the county boundary between Wiltshire and Dorset. It is
surrounded on all sides by farmland and heath. The land rises at the northern end of the site from where there are views of
the Bournemouth coast.

ENTRANCESAND APPROACHES The main drive, Upper North Road, entersthe northern tip of Rushmore Park at Bridmore
Belt. The drive runs ¢ 500m east-south-east before turning south for ¢ 1km, passing Bridgmore Hedge Corner after ¢ 500m.
The drive then passes through late C19 cast- and wrought-iron gates hung on highly decorative piers, again of cast and wrought
iron, set in a dwarf wall with cast-iron spear-headed railings (ensemble listed grade I1). The gates are flanked by the North
Lodge of 1886 and a cottage called Jubilee Lodge or Room, built in 1887 as a chapel (both listed grade I1). The drive continues
for afurther 1.2km in a southerly direction across the park to the House. A second drive, Lower North Road, crossesthe first at
its northern end, entering the site at Bridmore Lodge. It runs south-west, parallel to and east of Cuttice Bottom, to the west side
of the House. A third drive, Lower South Road, runs from Oakley Lane to the south through an avenue to Minchington Down,
then passes South L odge (OS 1889), continuing across Rushmore Park to approach the House. A fourth approach leads through
an avenue from Bloody Shard Gate in the far south-west corner of the site, through Farnham Woods to Rookery Farm and
Larmer Tree Grounds (qv). From here it turns eastwards, entering the park at Park View Point in the southern part of the site.
PRINCIPAL BUILDING Rushmore House (listed grade I1) stands on the summit of a hill, surrounded by the landscaped
grounds which extend north to Cuttice Down and south to Minchington Cross. Built of limestone ashlar with hipped roofs
of Welsh date and of two storeys, it was constructed in 1817 but may incorporate part of the house of ¢ 1760 in the central
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block (VCH 1987). It was extended to the south in 1880 by the architect Philip Webb for General Pitt-Rivers, this later block
being of three storeys.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS The pleasure grounds surround the House and are divided from the park by abrick
ha-ha. A round temple known as the Temple of Vesta (1890, listed grade 11) stands on their edge, ¢ 150m to the north-east of
the House. A broad gravel walk links the House with a brick-walled flower garden which stands within the pleasure groundsto
the north. The early C19 walls (listed grade I1) which enclose the garden on three sides are of Flemish garden wall bond with
a pitched brick coping. The walls incorporate four pairs of ashlar or ashlar and brick piers and two pairs of gates; one of the
|atter frames views from the garden over Cranborne Chase.

PARK Since the late C19 Rushmore Park has comprised of Rushmore Park itself, the Chase Avenues, Tollard Park, Larmer
Park, and Minchington Park. Rushmore Park extends to the north of Rushmore House to Cuttice Down and to the south to
Minchington Cross. To the east it is bounded by Cranborne Chase and Woodcutts Common. The park extends south of the
village of Tollard Royal to Biles Coppice situated north of the Wiltshire and Dorset county boundary. Two beech avenues
planted by Pitt-Rivers, the General's Avenue and Chase Avenue, run north-eastwards across the main area of the park extending
beyonditinto the Chase. They arelinked by athird avenue, Bridmore Ride, cutting south-east through the Chase. Rushmore Park
was enclosed by Pitt-Riversin 1880 and incorporated a small deer park which was extant by 1618. He used this enclosure near
the North Lodge as amenagerie for his exotic livestock; thisincluded yak, llamas, reindeer, zebras, and kangaroos which were
kept partly for the education and enjoyment of the local people. The existing coppice was little cleared, with the scattering of
individual specimen trees being planted amongst semi-natural woodland and relict wood pasture. Much of thiswas subsequently
removed in the 1970s, but untouched areas remain at Tinkley Down and South Cuttice on the west side of the park, and at
Badger's Glory to the east.

Some 1km south-south-west of Rushmore House lies Rushmore Farm, formerly known as Tollard Farm (OS 1889), which is
surrounded by parkland. The latter is enclosed to the north-west by Tollard Royal village, and to the east by alate C19 avenue
caled Tinkley Bottom (OS 1889). The parkland, which previously included arable and grazed land and open downland, is
scattered with clumps of beech and ash introduced by the late C19 (OS). To the west of this area, and to the south of the village,
lies Tollard Park, including Little Wood and Leys Coppice. The latter had been enclosed as fields by the early C17, and Pitt-
Rivers removed the hedges across the grassland and planted clumps of trees.

To the south of Tollard Park lies Larmer Park (so hamed on a map of Rushmore of 1900), at the eastern corner of which is
Park View Point. From here there are views to the north-west of King John's House in Tollard Royal village (outside the area
here registered), and to the north into the other areas of parkland. Tollard Park and Larmer Park are separated by Park Wood,
the collective name for Clap Lane Coppice, Church Way, Tollard Park Coppice, Inner Park, and Biles Coppice. Within Larmer
Park is a pleasure ground, the Larmer Tree Grounds (qv), laid out by Pitt-Rivers in the 1880s for the recreation of the local
people. To the east of Larmer Park is Minchington Park and Down, an area planted with clumps and belts of trees. This was
laid out as a golf course and racecourse in the 1890s (see map of 1896) but these features are now (2002) no longer used and
are only partly visible. As on Minchington Down to the south, areas of the existing downland with its hazel gorse and bramble
scrub were left by Pitt-Rivers, but this area was cleared, ploughed, and re-seeded in the 1970s.

The registered area of park includes numerous archaeological features, some of which are scheduled ancient monuments.
KITCHEN GARDEN The late C19 kitchen garden stands ¢ 600m to the south-east of the House on the edge of Rushmore Park
and Woodcutts Common. The garden has a rectangular plan and is enclosed by red-brick walls, principaly in English bond,
with stone dressings. It has three cylindrical corner towers, an observation turret on the fourth, south-west corner, gateways on
the north and south sides, a lodge on the north side, summerhouses in the form of temples on the north and west sides, and a
detached stable range immediately to the north. The whole ensembleislisted grade 1.
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Maps T Aldwell, Map showing Rushmore Lodge and surrounding land, 1618 (copy in Savills 1991) A Pitt-Rivers, Map of the
Park and Grounds, Rushmore, Wilts, with aportion of Cranborne Chase, showing the position of ancient remains, 1884 (private
collection) Map of the Rushmore-Larmer Golf Links, 1896 (private collection) Map of Rushmore, The Larmer Grounds, King
John's House, and the Museum at Farnham, with the surrounding country, 1900 (private collection)

0OSOld Series1" to 1 mile, published 1788 OS 6" to 1 mile: 1st edition published 1889 3rd edition published 1926/7 Description
written: 1991 Revised: September 2002 (FDM); April 2005 (CAA) Register Inspector: HYFDM Edited: April 2005

Lega
This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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